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® (1610)
[Translation]

The Chair (Mr. Francis Scarpaleggia (Lac-Saint-Louis,
Lib.)): I call this meeting to order.

I believe that all committee members are aware of the instruc-
tions regarding the distance between the microphone and the ear-
piece. For the benefit of the witnesses, and I'm sure they already
know this, I will remind you that we must be very careful to main-
tain a certain distance between the earpiece and the microphone.
When you are not using your earpiece, please place it—

[English]

Mr. Dan Mazier (Dauphin—Swan River—Neepawa, CPC): |
have a point of order.

[Translation]

The Chair: Just a moment, Mr. Mazier. I haven't finished giving
the instructions.

Please place the earpiece face down in the middle of the sticker.

Go ahead, Mr. Mazier.
[English]

Mr. Dan Mazier: I just noticed the minister is missing at the end
of the table. I thought he was coming in today.

The Chair: Well, I understand you made that assumption.
Mr. Dan Mazier: s that still a possibility?

The Chair: I asked him personally if he could make it, but he is
still presenting to cabinet.

Mr. Dan Mazier: He said no.

The Chair: He said he is presenting to cabinet. He did not actu-
ally say no, but I followed up, Mr. Mazier, at your request, and—

Mr. Dan Mazier: Actually, it was the committee's request.

The Chair: Yes, it was the committee's request through you.
Mr. Dan Mazier: Okay. Thank you. He's not here. Very good.
The Chair: Okay.

We have with us officials from the department who have a lot of
knowledge about the various issues that fall under the purview of
the department's mandate.

We have a five-minute opening statement from Mr. Tremblay.

[Translation]

Mr. Tremblay, you have the floor.

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay (Deputy Minister, Department
of the Environment): Thank you, Mr. Chair.

[English]

I am pleased to join the committee members today to discuss the
2024-25 main estimates for Environment and Climate Change
Canada. I will provide you with an overview of our mains this year,
after which my colleagues and 1 would be happy to answer your
questions.

Before I begin, I would like to acknowledge that we are on the
traditional, unceded territory of the Algonquin Anishinabe first na-
tion.

[Translation]

From coast to coast to coast, Canada is getting warmer, and it's
warming twice as fast as the global average. Last year, the magni-
tude of the wildfires, the smoke, the length of the wildfire season
and the impacts across the country contributed to making it the
worst wildfire season we've had for a very long time.

For the first time in the history of our country, an entire capital,
the capital of the Northwest Territories, had to be evacuated. So
20,000 people were evacuated from Yellowknife. This requires ac-
tion to address the adaptation and conservation issues posed by cli-
mate change.

[English]

I will not go through the main estimates line by line, but allow
me to mention a few highlights.

In all, the 2024-25 main estimates total $2.8 billion. Compared
with 2023-24, it adds $314 million more.

1 will mention a few differences.

One is regarding the creation of the Canada water agency. You
can see reflected, in the mains, the budget 2024 decision to pro-
vide $681 million in new funding over 10 years, beginning this
year, and $18.9 million ongoing to implement the freshwater action
plan and establish the Canada water agency.
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Another thing you will see is the new collaboration with the
Canadian Climate Institute. Our mains reflect the government's de-
cision to provide $26.7 million over five years for new contribution
agreements with the Canadian Climate Institute. The objective is
for the CCI to expand its work related to adapting to and mitigating
the effects of climate change.

[Translation]

Our budget has also been adjusted to reflect an injection
of $211 million, including $4.8 million for us, to ensure what we
call access to high-performance computing.

This will help our department to advance science and research
and prevent future conditions, including those that lead to extreme
weather events. For example, by using high-performance comput-
ers, we will be able to better understand events and alert popula-
tions in real time about changes in the weather.

In the same vein, in terms of permanent funding for weather ser-
vices, our main estimates include $643.5 million over 10 years
and $62.3 million per year for Environment Canada's meteorologi-
cal service to continue to provide Canadians with vital information
24-7 on the weather, water quantity, climate, ice and air quality
across the country.

Finally, our budget includes additional funding to implement
Canada's national adaptation strategy. Again, that is as a result of
the decision in budget 2024.

The budget included $935.6 million, of which our department re-
ceives $637 million, to support the long-term implementation of the
strategy. Of that amount, $530 million is currently in the main esti-
mates. It is for the green municipal fund, or GMF.

[English]
There are a few highlights and variations you can see in our bud-

get for this year. More details about those funds can be found in the
main estimates documentation.

Thank you for listening. My colleagues and I will now be happy
to answer your questions.

[Translation)
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
® (1615)
The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Tremblay.

Thank you to all the witnesses for being here.

We'll start with Mr. Deltell.

Mr. Gérard Deltell (Louis-Saint-Laurent, CPC): Thank you,
Mr. Chair.

Ladies and gentlemen, welcome to your Parliament. Most impor-
tantly, thank you for your service to the country in your very impor-
tant role at Environment and Climate Change Canada.

First, I echo what my friend Mr. Mazier said earlier. It's really
unfortunate to see that the minister isn't with us today.

Sincerely, Mr. Chair, I expected him to be here, since you were
very optimistic about it last week. I find it unfortunate, all the more

so because he took part in four question periods last week, he was
present yesterday and today in question period, and he was unable
to push back the presentation he apparently has to make to cabinet
by one hour. He would have been accountable here, in a parliamen-
tary committee. It's his responsibility, and it may not be the first on
his list, but it's nevertheless very important to be accountable to the
committee. He didn't respond to our request, and that's very unfor-
tunate. Also, I don't recognize him; it seems to me he's the guy
who's always willing to go to the front. We want to bring him to the
front here, but he's doing everything he can to avoid it. That's too
bad.

Mr. Deputy Minister, I'd like to talk to you about the minister's
presence. When he appeared before the committee, the first ques-
tions I asked him concerned a trip he had taken abroad for COP27,
I believe. I asked him how much his environmental bill—or should
I say “ill”?—was, and what he intended to do about it when he
went halfway around the world. If I remember correctly, he went to
Egypt to spend long days and work very hard there for almost
14 days. With regard to the carbon footprint, he told me that the
government had standards, that it was the department that took care
of it, that credits were being purchased and all that.

Can you give us a few more details to explain, Mr. Tremblay,
about what might appear to many to be greenwashing?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: Beyond a travel expense limit,
the tonnes of emissions are calculated and the department pays an
amount to Treasury Board to offset the use of transportation.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: The department pays, not the minister.
Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: The department pays for it.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: Is that the case for everyone, in all situa-
tions and for all the minister's travel?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I would have to check, but it's
normally calculated and charged to the department's budget.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: For the last COP meeting, how much did
the greenwashing cost the government or your department?

Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: I don't have the costs related
solely to transportation, but to the overall costs related to COP28.
In fact, the minister told you that it was important to be at the Unit-
ed Nations conference, or COP, and that it was more of an invest-
ment in the context of the effort that must be made on the interna-
tional scene.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: Yes, but it cost $13,000 for a round trip to
Dubai, in the middle of the desert. I understand that we have to—

® (1620)
Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: Dubai is far away.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: —serve Canadians, and I also understand
that these trips are expensive.
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You know, I haven't spent my entire life lecturing everyone on
environment, but the committee feels this approach is very much
about greenwashing. You travel, but you clear your conscience by
buying credits. Is that correct?

Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: People do need to be made aware
of their actions.

With respect to the UN conference, a lot of the effort to address
climate change is also happening outside Canada. If we don't play
an active role in that conference, we won't necessarily be able to in-
fluence the decisions that will be made there.

Here's an interesting fact as well: At COP28, the delegations in-
cluded many more people, particularly those from the provinces.
I'm thinking in particular of Alberta and Saskatchewan, which had
a strong presence at COP28.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: I'd be happy to talk to them if I were in Al-
berta, but I'm in Ottawa, and I have the deputy minister of Environ-
ment and Climate Change Canada in front of me.

Can you tell me how many people went to Dubai and how much
the department paid Treasury Board for greenwashing after it at-
tended COP28?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I don't know how many people
were sent by the various departments. I can tell you that Environ-
ment and Climate Change Canada sent 44 people to COP28. It was
the same number of people, give or take one or two people, maybe,
as it sent to COP27.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: If I understand correctly, your greenwash-
ing policy applies only to air travel. It doesn't apply to the week
you spend in air-conditioned hotels in the middle of the desert.

Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: You're absolutely right. It's for
the carbon deficit, not necessarily for hotels.

Mr. Gérard Deltell: Mr. Chair, I will use the rest of my time to
move the following motion, of which we gave notice on Friday,
June 14.

Given the large workload the committee has on the docket, the committee in-
structs the chair to book five meetings in between July 8, 2024, and Septem-
ber 13, 2024, while the House is adjourned, to deal with unfinished business,
such as the $8 billion Net Zero Accelerator fund waste and other pressing mat-
ters as they emerge.

It's imperative that Canadians see us working. As we all know
very well, the summer period is not a vacation period. We're all in
our ridings, meeting with Canadians and listening to them, and
touring. Obviously, it depends on our political party's commit-
ments. However, just because we're listening to Canadians doesn't
mean that we can't be here in Ottawa doing our job as lawmakers.

We've been inviting the minister to testify for two months, but he
hasn't had the opportunity to do so. Perhaps he'll find the time to
come and testify before the committee during those five meetings.
We're dealing with a number of very important issues that relate to
Environment and Climate Change Canada.

The motion states that we want to deal with the Net Zero Accel-
erator fund and other pressing matters. That's one part of the $8 bil-
lion.

In addition, there's a lot of debate on the impact of the carbon
tax. We feel that the government didn't disclose and was hiding it.
If the minister had been here today, we could have gotten to the
bottom of things, but he decided not to come and testify, which is
unfortunate.

We could also talk about climate change. We see the effects of it
on a daily basis. Just because it's summer doesn't mean we can't
meet on parliamentary business.

Of course, there's also the infamous green fund. Today, following
a question from our colleague during question period, we learned
that the Minister of the Environment had shares in a business di-
rectly involved in this scandal. That's quite significant.

We have a number of questions, and we have to debate a number
of issues. We could do that at those five committee meetings.

Let's be clear: We have about three months to do this. It's not
rocket science. We're all able to find time to meet during the sum-
mer. All the members around this table care about being account-
able to taxpayers. That's true of the government and the opposition
parties, who must do their work diligently.

We feel that it's not too much to ask that we meet five times dur-
ing the summer. The government must be accountable for its poor
management of public funds, particularly at the Department of the
Environment.

[English]
The Chair: Mr. Mazier.

Mr. Dan Mazier: Thank you.

Thank you to my colleague for bringing out these important
points. We have a lot of work to do here. We've done a lot of stud-
ies. We've been doing this water study here for, I don't know, 15 or
more meetings. Is that right?

There's a lot of good information, and we have a lot of work to
clean up before we head into the fall session, never mind all the
other things we're finding out in this committee, such as the $8-bil-
lion net-zero accelerator fund, for which over 70% of the projects
have given no commitment to reduce emissions, when the fund was
supposed to reduce emissions.

We're now finding out that this carbon tax is going to cost Cana-
dians $30 billion a year, or $2,000 per family. It's ridiculous. We
need to be talking about this, because this is all because of the car-
bon tax. This is a government-made problem by our minister that
this committee was supposed to report on. The fact that he's not
here today spells it out very clearly. Hopefully, he will see wisdom
and the error of his ways, and he will get here this summer when
we have these committee meetings.

I don't think anybody realizes just how serious this is. There is a
massive amount of money leaking out of this government every
day—
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® (1625)
Mr. Adam van Koeverden (Milton, Lib.): [Inaudible—Editor]
Mr. Dan Mazier: Pardon me, Adam.

I guess you have trouble defending yourself.
The Chair: We can't have cross-party conversations.

Mr. Mazier, please go ahead.

Mr. Dan Mazier: Anyway, to the other members of this commit-
tee, the Bloc and NDP members—obviously, the Liberals won't
want to step up—as MPs we have a responsibility to the Canadian
taxpayer. Please, give this some consideration.

Thank you.
The Chair: Mr. van Koeverden.
Mr. Adam van Koeverden: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'll start by reiterating that the Minister of Environment has ap-
peared at committee nine times. He came most recently on May 22.
He was here on March 19 of this year and on December 14, 2023.
The minister comes here frequently and regularly. We appreciate
his attendance.

Mr. Chair, the suggestion from the Conservatives that everything
Canadians are facing right now, from an affordability crisis to a
housing crisis, is all a result of pricing pollution is something that
has been soundly refuted by 300 economists across Canada, as well
as William Nordhaus, who won a Nobel Prize for his work on car-
bon pricing. There isn't one reputable Canadian economist or inter-
national economist who agrees with their version of reality.

For that reason, Mr. Chair, I would move to adjourn debate on
this motion so that we can get back to our work. As the member
very rightly pointed out, we have work to do. We have experts here.
We have these officials here. They have come to this committee to
answer our questions. I'd like to get to those questions.

I move to adjourn debate.
The Chair: That's a dilatory motion. There's no debate.

We will go straight to the vote on whether to adjourn debate on
the motion.

(Motion agreed to: yeas 7; nays 4)

The Chair: We'll go to Mr. Longfield for six minutes.
Mr. Lloyd Longfield (Guelph, Lib.): Thank you, Mr. Chair.

To our eight witnesses who are here to answer our questions,
thank you for being here and for your dedication to the work that
has to be done in the climate crisis.

I want to focus my question around the cap on emissions, some-
thing we've been talking about over the last few meetings with both
the bank executives and the oil and gas executives. Our emissions,
according to our latest estimates, have dropped since 2005.

To your understanding, are the proposed emissions levels in the
cap we're working on consistent with the commitments we've al-
ready made with oil and gas companies? Could you maybe share
with us how things are moving along in terms of the emissions cap?
They are continuing to increase production at a rate that is faster

than they're decreasing their emissions density. Those emissions are
now 30% of the overall emissions that our economy is facing.
Where are we with all of this in terms of our estimates and the work
you're doing as a department on capping emissions?

® (1630)

Mr. John Moffet (Assistant Deputy Minister, Environmental
Protection Branch, Department of the Environment): I can try
to answer that question.

I'll start with the context that you refer to, which is that in our
most recent national inventory report, we indicated that Canada's
total emissions in 2022 were significantly below the highest level
prepandemic, the 2019 level. Our total emissions are coming down
and trending down towards our 2030 target.

However, we have one sector that is relatively flat, and that's
transportation, hence the need for some more measures in trans-
portation. There's only one sector whose emissions continue to ac-
tually increase—the oil and gas production sector. That's the ratio-
nale for the government to have made its announcement that it
would cap emissions. It's in that context that the government has
announced a cap.

Just to reiterate, the intention is to cap and reduce emissions in a
predictable, accountable manner without affecting production deci-
sions. In order to do that, of course, we're engaging with the sector
and with provinces to identify what is the maximum technically
achievable. It's not what they will actually do, but what is achiev-
able over a certain period of time. We'll put in place a cap to ensure
that, at a minimum, that level of emission reductions occurs.

We've been engaged in discussions for over a year on this, and as
I think the minister has stated publicly to this committee and in oth-
er places, the intention is to provide a draft regulation early this fall.

Mr. Lloyd Longfield: Thank you.

You mentioned provinces. We always come across the jurisdic-
tional questions, with provinces being responsible for setting limits
on the production of product that's coming out of the ground in the
province of jurisdiction.

I'm trying to think of how I can phrase this in terms of our esti-
mates. There's the work we're putting into getting the density down
faster and working with the companies involved, because we don't
want to put them out of business with unrealistic targets. We'd like
to work with them in terms of the net-zero emissions goals that they
have and the technology that needs to be employed for them to get
to net zero faster.

How do you work with ISED or with other departments in terms
of the innovations that need to happen faster?
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Mr. John Moffet: That's a very important question and issue for
the Government of Canada.

I'll start where you started with some of the critiques about the
cap. I'll reiterate that the intended focus of the measure is on emis-
sions. It is our intention, as you will see in the draft regulations, that
the focus is on constraining emissions and not on dictating where
oil and gas gets produced or, indeed, how it gets produced, so long
as the sector is able to reduce emissions over time.

As is the case with the government's overall approach to decar-
bonizing the economy and moving towards net zero, the govern-
ment's approach to decarbonizing the oil and gas sector involves a
suite of measures. At its foundation, of course, is carbon pricing,
and then in some cases there are additional regulatory measures es-
tablished, primarily either where pricing won't send the right signal
or where it won't send the signal adequately because of the trajecto-
ry of the sector.

In addition to regulatory measures for which Environment and
Climate Change Canada is the lead, the government deploys, as you
mentioned, a number of other measures, including investment tax
credits and direct financial contributions from the net-zero accelera-
tor, etc.

® (1635)
[Translation]

The Chair: Thank you. I have to stop you there, but you'll have
other opportunities to speak on the issue.

Ms. Pauzé, you have the floor.

Ms. Monique Pauzé (Repentigny, BQ): Thank you very much
for coming, and so many of you as well.

I'll start by asking Ms. Raffoul and Ms. Brady a question about
the Impact Assessment Agency of Canada.

In your departmental plan for 2024-25, it says:

Work will be done, in collaboration with other federal departments, to capitalize on
efficiencies so major projects, in particular projects that support clean growth, advance
more quickly.

However, we learned that Impact Assessment Agency staff had
been assigned to a working group alongside representatives from
the oil and gas industry. It provides advice to a central government
committee called the “main table”. At this main table, there are rep-
resentatives from the Department of Natural Resources and others
from the Department of Innovation, Science and Economic Devel-
opment. They were supposed to meet with various industry figures
who are members of the well-known Pathways Alliance. Issues like
indigenous engagement, regulatory coordination, economic inclu-
sion, emissions accounting and project development and funding
are to be discussed.

So we have this table, all the lobbying done by the Pathways Al-
liance and all the opacity surrounding certain information. All these
elements correspond, in a somewhat worrisome way, to the de-
mands of the so-called Pathways Alliance. That's what it was ask-
ing for in the spring. So we seem to have given it every single thing
it was asking for.

Are you going to allow the regulatory relief the oil and gas in-
dustry is requesting, particularly by not subjecting some of its
projects to the Impact Assessment Act?

Ms. Patricia Brady (Vice-President, Strategic Policy and Pro-
grams, Impact Assessment Agency of Canada): I will try to an-
swer your question.

[English]

The projects that are subject to the Impact Assessment Act are
set out in Governor in Council regulations. They set out the types
of projects, including certain oil and gas projects and their size, that
are subject to the law. It's not a result of lobbying efforts or other-
wise that a project would or would not be subject to the act. There
is provision in the act as well for the minister to use discretionary
authority to subject a project to impact assessment.

[Translation]

Ms. Monique Pauzé: I will stop you there, because I'd like you
to tell me about emissions control, since you're going to work with
the oil and gas companies to calculate emissions.

According to a study by Environment and Climate Change
Canada and a university—I can't recall which one—the oil and gas
industry is not reporting all of its emissions. Its emissions are actu-
ally much higher.

So you're going to sit down with people from the industry to cal-
culate emissions.

What are you going to base your calculations on?
[English]

Ms. Patricia Brady: I'm not familiar with that study or the Im-
pact Assessment Agency's being involved in it.

[Translation]

Ms. Monique Pauzé: Okay. So I will move on to another ques-
tion.

My next question is for the representatives of the Department of
the Environment.

The federal government has announced significant funding for
the energy transition. In fact, the private sector and the western
provinces will be able to benefit from numerous subsidies and in-
vestment tax credits, particularly for carbon capture and nuclear en-
ergy development.

In return, the federal government offers a 15% tax credit to
Crown corporations such as Hydro-Québec for the development of
green projects. Let's just say that Hydro-Québec is already quite
green. However, a windfall of public money is being sent out west.

The federal government is now interfering in the management of
public corporations in Quebec by requiring Hydro-Québec to use
this tax credit to lower people's electricity bills and to publicly dis-
close how it has reduced the cost of electricity for taxpayers.

Will Ottawa require western oil companies to publicly disclose
how billions of dollars in public funds have reduced our carbon
footprint?
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Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: With respect to tax credits, [
would have to defer to my finance colleagues. That's why I don't
want to get into too much detail about that.

To answer your question, I would say that the government devel-
oped this to guarantee decarbonization and growth in clean energy
production. We also wanted to make sure that the bill would not be
passed on to taxpayers, so we made changes. That's why this mea-
sure was put in place.

In terms of the specifics of how the tax credit for decarbonization
of the oil and gas sector will work, I can't speak to that because I
don't have it in front of me right now.

® (1640)

Ms. Monique Pauzé: No. I don't want to know how the tax
credit works, but rather whether oil and gas companies will be re-
quired to do the same thing as Hydro-Québec.

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I also can't tell you about the
conditions related to tax credits at this time, because I don't have
that information in front of me.

Ms. Monique Pauzé: Okay. I'll try something else.

[English]

Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: I don't know if John has informa-
tion on the conditions.

Mr. John Moffet: Environment and Climate Change Canada
will support Finance Canada in analyzing whatever input is re-
quired from companies. It will be Finance Canada that will stipu-
late the conditions, and I think the Minister of Finance is on record
saying that they anticipate providing those details this summer.

[Translation]

The Chair: You have five seconds left, Ms. Pauzé.

Ms. Monique Pauzé: As we say back home, what's good for the
goose is good for the gander. In other words, if we ask Hy-
dro-Québec—

An hon. member: I really feel sorry for the interpreters.

Ms. Monique Pauzé: Oh, yeah! Ha, ha!

I'm thinking that if Hydro-Québec is going to be asked to prove
that this tax credit reduces the cost of electricity for taxpayers, then
I want the oil and gas industry to be very transparent as well. We
talk a lot about transparency here; so we would ask them to be very
transparent as well.

The Chair: Thank you.

Ms. Collins, you have the floor.
[English]
Ms. Laurel Collins (Victoria, NDP): Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I want to thank the witnesses and experts for coming, the offi-
cials.

Mr. Tremblay, you mentioned wildfires in your opening remarks.
I just noticed that we didn't get a copy of your opening remarks.

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: They were not distributed. I was
because I rewrote them. I'm sorry that happened. I can make sure
you get them.

Ms. Laurel Collins: That's wonderful.

In the future, when you're appearing, if you could submit them in
both languages before that so the committee can have them, it
would be helpful.

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: It was too long, and I didn't want
to waste too much of your time. I'm sorry.

Ms. Laurel Collins: The first question I have is around wild-
fires. We know that last year was just an excruciating, record-
breaking wildfire season. We expect to have these kinds of wildfire
seasons from now on. Already this year, the hectares burned are
getting close to the 20-year average, and we're not even halfway
through the year.

The New Democrats have been calling for a national wildfire
service. We know that the military has been talking about how they
don't have enough personnel to respond to the increase in disaster
response. Is this something that you and your department have been
engaged in conversations about?

Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: Yes. I can also point to Parks
Canada on this effort.

On our side, what is very important is to provide all the accurate
information for all the decision-makers. That's not just the federal
government; it's also provinces and local governments, because we
do provide meteorological services to all Canadians 24-7.

As you said, the climate is more unpredictable, let's put it that
way, and we also see a significant shift. I was talking with my
friends from Parks Canada, who said that, at some point, you can
have snow one day and 27°C three days after—

Ms. Laurel Collins: Because we have a limited amount of time,
could we focus on wildfires?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: What we focus on, in our case, is
building up our capacity to be able to support our friends at Public
Safety in their effort. As I mentioned, we also make sure that we
have ongoing funding and more funding to support decision-mak-
ers.

Ms. Laurel Collins: Have you had conversations about the idea
of a national wildfire service?

Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: 1 don't personally have discus-
sions about what that should look like, but we have discussions
about how we are getting more effective at responding to the de-
mands, for sure.

Ms. Laurel Collins: What I'm hearing is that there have been no
discussions about the creation of a national wildfire service or the
possibility of that with your department.

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I'm not part of discussions on
this at this stage, for sure.

Maybe Andrew has some information.
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Mr. Andrew Campbell (Senior Vice-President, Operations,
Parks Canada Agency): We are perhaps the only federal depart-
ment that has firefighters on the ground beside those who are with
the Canadian Armed Forces. That is all run through the Canadian
Interagency Forest Fire Centre. Within that system, all of the inter-
agency groups work together in order to be able to move firefight-
ers across the country, so we would have firefighters moving—

® (1645)

Ms. Laurel Collins: 1 guess the specific question is around
whether or not you've looked at having a national service. There are
conversations starting right now. Given that we've heard from the
military that they don't have enough personnel to respond to natural
disasters and given that we're going to see summer after summer of
increasing wildfire events, have there been conversations with any
of your departments around the creation of a national wildfire ser-
vice?

Mr. Andrew Campbell: Certainly there have been reviews of
the functions of CIF through Natural Resources Canada and the de-
partments that are with that. There has been an overall look by all
of us, just in the last year, of how we can do better as inter-agency
departments on all hazard analysis, and that's being taken on by
Public Safety.

Ms. Laurel Collins: Thanks so much.

Ms. Shannon, I want to ask in particular about last year's report
from the environment commissioner. I was pretty shocked that they
seem to find the work on the Species at Risk Act extremely lacking
from multiple departments.

One thing jumped out for me: Environment and Climate Change
Canada had completed only one of the 399 reports that it was re-
quired to produce under the act. The environment commissioner
had many other criticisms, but I'm curious about the progress since
that report came out.

Ms. Tara Shannon (Assistant Deputy Minister, Canadian
Wildlife Services, Department of the Environment): You will re-
call that, since the report came out, we have accepted all the recom-
mendations of the commissioner. The work continues. I don't have
the details for you in terms of the number of reports, but I would
say that we take the report very seriously, and we have accepted all
the recommendations. We'll continue to work, both internally and
with our partner agencies.

Ms. Laurel Collins: Could you follow up in writing with the
committee to get us the numbers on how many have been complet-
ed?

I see you nodding. That's wonderful.

Then, in particular, there's been media around the spotted owl.
I'm wondering if you could give us an update on what's happening
with that.

Ms. Tara Shannon: Absolutely. I can say, in short, that work
continues in collaboration with British Columbia on the spotted
owl. We are engaged currently in discussions with British
Columbia and the surrounding first nations, Spuzzum in particular,
on what an action plan for the spotted owl might look like.

Ms. Laurel Collins: My next question is on the Impact Assess-
ment Act, and in particular Highway 413.

The Chair: Ms. Collins, we're really out of time.

Ms. Laurel Collins: How long do I have?

The Chair: The time's up, actually.

Ms. Laurel Collins: Okay, I'll wait for the next round.

The Chair: You'll have another shot, for sure.
We'll go into our second round.

Mr. Mazier, go ahead.
Mr. Dan Mazier: Thank you, Chair.

Thank you to the officials for coming out this afternoon.

Mr. Tremblay, the Liberal government gave away $96 million to
General Motors through the net-zero accelerator fund. General Mo-
tors is an American company that made over $235 billion in rev-
enue last year.

How many emissions are supposed to be reduced directly from
this $96-million handout?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I think we have had this discus-
sion before. I would invite you to invite my colleagues from ISED,
who are the ones managing this program, and they should be able
to answer the question.

Mr. Dan Mazier: What's your position again?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I'm the deputy minister of Envi-
ronment and Climate Change Canada.

Mr. Dan Mazier: You're responsible for emissions reductions.

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: We are responsible for emissions
reductions and for the plans in general, but each department, in co-
ordination with us, is responsible for the programs they manage.
For example, Finance manages the ITC, and other departments
manage their programs. We're not in a place where one person actu-
ally rules them all.

Mr. Dan Mazier: Mr. Tremblay, the Liberal government gave
away $300 million to a company by the name of Air Products
through the net-zero accelerator fund. Air Products is an American
company worth over $80 billion.

How many emissions are supposed to be reduced directly from
this $300-million handout?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I'd answer in the same way.

Mr. Dan Mazier: You are the deputy minister responsible for
emissions reductions.

Mr. Jean-Frangois Tremblay: I'm the responsible.... If you look
at the Federal Accountability Act that was passed by the previous
government, the way it works is that each deputy minister is re-
sponsible for the fund engaged within their departments. That's the
way it is and always has been.

If you want the answer, you should invite the minister or the
deputy minister responsible for the management of this program.
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Mr. Dan Mazier: So you don't know.

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I'm just saying they're the ones
who should come to answer that question.

Mr. Adam van Koeverden: I have a point of order, Mr. Chair.

Sometimes on this committee, the Conservative members treat
non-partisan officials as if they're politicians.

® (1650)
Mr. Dan Mazier: That's not a point of order.

Mr. Adam van Koeverden: I think it's condescending and rude,
and I'd ask that all members respect our witnesses.

The Chair: That's not a point of order.

Ms. Taylor Roy, go ahead.

Ms. Leah Taylor Roy (Aurora—QOak Ridges—Richmond
Hill, Lib.): Mr. Chair, I have a point of order on the relevance of
the questioning. We're talking about the main estimates here. The
program the member opposite is referring to is not in these esti-
mates, and the officials here are not responsible for this program.
I'm wondering if this line of questions is actually relevant.

The Chair: That's a good point, since the program is not—

Mr. Dan Mazier: The officials actually brought up the net-zero
accelerator, and it's in the minister's mandate letter. It's talking
about emissions reductions, so it's 100% inside the—

The Chair: Ms. Collins, go ahead on another point of order.

Ms. Laurel Collins: On this point, I want to put in my word that
if the officials bring something up, I think it's a fair thing for us to
ask about.

The Chair: That is unless they're bringing something up that's
outside the ambit of their mandate.

Mr. Branden Leslie (Portage—Lisgar, CPC): Just to clarify,
we invited officials from that department to be here today, and they
refused. Is that correct?

The Chair: No, they're coming, but we agreed that they'd come
in the fall.

Mr. Branden Leslie: I thought the deputy minister couldn't
come today and that's why we couldn't have them here.

We've tried; that is my point.

The Chair: Yes. He couldn't come today, but we've agreed to
look at the whole issue of the net-zero accelerator in great detail in
the fall rather than only look at it partially today.

Go ahead, Mr. Mazier, but Mr. Tremblay has given the same an-
swer twice. I think maybe you might want to move on to another
topic.

Mr. Dan Mazier: The deputy minister responsible for emissions
reductions doesn't know anything about emissions reductions. Is
that true?

The Chair: I think this is the third time now. This is becoming a
bit of badgering of the witness.
I like robust debate at committee, as you know, but I think....

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: There are more than 80 initia-
tives under the plans for climate change. There are more than 80

programs, and each program has I don't know how many projects.
You should not expect me to come here on behalf of all those peo-
ple without being briefed in advance and have answers about each
project that is funded under each program that exists in the federal
government.

The Chair: Mr. Mazier, go ahead.

Mr. Dan Mazier: Mr. Tremblay, the Liberal government gave
away $551 million to a company by the name of Umicore through
the net-zero accelerator fund, which you've mentioned, and you're
responsible for emissions reductions. Umicore is a Belgian compa-
ny that made over $27 billion in revenue last year.

How many emissions are supposed to be reduced directly from
this $551-million handout?

Mr. Jean-Francois Tremblay: I'm not responsible for emissions
reductions. Everybody is responsible within the government for the
emissions reductions they're supposed to make through their own
programs. We are responsible for coordination and support of other
departments in the way they develop their programs, but as I men-
tioned before, the accountability is still with each department to
manage the programs it has.

Mr. Dan Mazier: Thank you.

Mr. Chair, I'd like to move the following motion:
Given that

The Liberal government released its internal economic data on the carbon tax,
revealing it costs Canadians $30.5 billion and over $1800 for every household in
Canada;

This is in addition to the increased costs the carbon tax puts on gas, groceries
and home heating;

The Liberal government tried to cover up this information from Canadians; and

When the Parliamentary Budget Officer revealed that the Liberal government
had this data they placed him under a gag order and attempted to ruin his reputa-
tion;

The committee report to the House that the environment minister must resign
immediately.

Mr. Chair, Minister Guilbeault needs to resign. Minister Guil-
beault has been caught hiding a damning report from Canadians.
Canada's budget watchdog, the Parliamentary Budget Officer, re-
vealed that the Liberals were hiding a secret report from Canadians.
Not only did we learn that the Liberals were keeping this internal
carbon tax report a secret from Canadians, but we also learned that
they placed a gag order on Canada's budget watchdog. Yes, the Lib-
erals silenced the Parliamentary Budget Officer with a gag order,
preventing him from speaking about the damning piece of evi-
dence.

We must ask ourselves, why would the government hide its own
economic analysis of the carbon tax? Well, we know why.

® (1655)

Mr. Lloyd Longfield: I have a point of order.
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I'm looking at the motions that we have notices of motion for,
and this isn't one of them. Is this a notice of a new motion? If so,
we probably shouldn't be debating it.

The Chair: Let's find out.
Notice was given on the 13th.

Mr. Mazier.

Mr. Dan Mazier: We must ask ourselves, why would the gov-
ernment hide its own economic analysis of the carbon tax? Well,
now we know. The government's internal carbon tax analysis re-
vealed that the cost of the carbon tax will be more than $30 billion
per year. That's almost $2,000 per family.

For years, Minister Guilbeault told Canadians that the carbon tax
wouldn't cost them, but now we know that Minister Guilbeault will-
ingly chose to vandalize Canada's economy with the carbon tax. He
knew that the carbon tax was going to harm our economy. He knew
that the carbon tax was going to cost Canadian families, but he
chose to plow ahead with his carbon tax hikes anyway. Minister
Guilbeault is an economic vandal. He needs to resign.

After nine years of this Liberal government, Canada is broken.
Food is up. Gas is up. Home heating is up. In the middle of a cost
of living crisis, Minister Guilbeault chose to punish Canadians with
a carbon tax. The fact that Minister Guilbeault kept his economic
analysis a secret from Canadians is absurd. How can Minister Guil-
beault be trusted? What else is he keeping secret from Canadians?

In testifying before our committee, Minister Guilbeault was
asked if he planned on increasing the carbon tax over $170 per
tonne past 2030. He refused to rule out further carbon tax hikes. I
asked the environment minister at committee, “Has your govern-
ment decided whether it will increase the carbon tax over $170 a
tonne past 2030? Give me a yes or no.” The environment minister
dared to respond with “I'm not obliged to answer yes or no to those
questions.”

The fact that his carbon tax will cost the Canadian economy
over $30 billion per year doesn't bother Minister Guilbeault. The
environment minister doesn't believe that he needs to tell Canadians
if he plans to hike the tax on gas, heat and groceries even further. I
encourage all members of the committee to ask Canadians if they
have confidence in Minister Guilbeault. If they did, they would
quickly realize that most Canadians want Minister Guilbeault to go,
and I agree. I represent a completely rural constituency. No minister
in this government has inflicted more harm on rural Canada than
Minister Guilbeault. Minister Guilbeault has to go, and that is right
now.

Thank you very much.
The Chair: Mr. van Koeverden.
Mr. Adam van Koeverden: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Over a year ago, the Canadian Climate Institute issued a state-
ment that said that the PBO's latest carbon pricing report had big
flaws. It took a little bit over a year for the Parliamentary Budget
Officer to re-quantify the economic effects of carbon pricing and is-
sue the statement that there were flaws in his 2022 and 2023 report.
We respect and appreciate the work of the PBO, and we're looking
forward to their clarification this fall.

I'd like to reiterate that the open letter from 300 economists on
Canadian carbon pricing has been up on the Ecofiscal website for
over three months. I wonder if any of the Conservatives have taken
the opportunity to read it or to heed some of the very pointed re-
quests and recommendations that the economists make. They basi-
cally urge people who are naysaying to come up with an alternative
if they are making suggestions that carbon pricing...which is a rev-
enue-neutral approach that is very effective at both reducing emis-
sions and supporting energy affordability.

Mr. Chair, what's more concerning than that.... The PBO arrived
at committee to reclarify, despite being badgered by Conservative
MPs, as we've seen at this committee today, that he has not been
told not to disclose the government's carbon pricing analysis. He
clarified that in the news and he clarified that in the committee, yet
the Conservatives are misrepresenting what he said. What he said
was in his second language and he made a mistake.

The Conservatives should read the news. They should accept the
fact that the Parliamentary Budget Officer re-clarified that his eco-
nomic analysis of the impact of the carbon tax was overestimated in
his report of 2022 and 2023. The Canadian Climate Institute basi-
cally warned more than a year ago that there were flaws. Despite
those flaws, the PBO confirmed that 80% of Canadian households
get more money back than they pay in carbon pricing.

I'd remind Canadians who are watching the environment com-
mittee that on June 14, many Canadians received their Canada car-
bon rebate, as I did. If you did your taxes on time but not early, you
would have received April's payment on the 14th.

Mr. Speaker, like I said, what's more concerning is that the Con-
servatives continue not just to badger witnesses, but also to com-
pletely misrepresent—

® (1700)
Mr. Dan Mazier: I have a point of order.
The Chair: Is it a real point of order?
Mr. Dan Mazier: Is Adam planning on shutting down debate?

Mr. Adam van Koeverden: It's “Mr. van Koeverden” to you.
Thanks.

The Chair: What's the point of order?

Mr. Dan Mazier: Does Mr. van Koeverden intend to shut down
debate?

The Chair: Well, he'll say when he wants to, I guess.

Go ahead, Mr. van Koeverden.
Mr. Branden Leslie: [/naudible—Editor]
Mr. Adam van Koeverden: What report?

Mr. Dan Mazier: You just mentioned it.
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Mr. Adam van Koeverden: Sure, | would absolutely love to ta-
ble the report from 300 Canadian economists on carbon pricing.

Some hon. members: Oh, oh!
The Chair: Order.

Mr. van Koeverden has the floor.
Mr. Adam van Koeverden: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

As I said, Mr. Giroux, the Parliamentary Budget Officer, clarified
that after being badgered at committee and speaking in his second
language, he had made a mistake. He made an error that he reclari-
fied on Monday. Yet, the Conservatives are using the previous er-
ror. They're basically saying that Monday didn't happen.

Mr. Chair, it's unbecoming of any member of Parliament to bad-
ger a witness or to misrepresent a public servant. For that reason,
and out of respect for our witnesses, I would ask that we adjourn
debate on this frivolous motion.

The Chair: We'll go to a vote.

(Motion agreed to: yeas 7; nays 4)
Mr. Adam van Koeverden: I have a point of order, Mr. Chair.
The Chair: Yes.

Mr. Adam van Koeverden: As requested, I'd like to table the re-
port where the PBO said he is not being muzzled by the Liberal
government, despite the fact that Conservative MPs badgered him
at committee.

The Chair: What did you want to table?

Mr. Adam van Koeverden: It's a news article in which the PBO
reclarifies his position on the economic impact of the—

Mr. Dan Mazier: I have a point of order.

The Chair: You can send that to the committee, Mr. van Koever-
den.

Mr. Mazier.

Mr. Dan Mazier: Chair, [ have a point of clarification.

What is he actually sending to committee? Is it a news article, or
is it an actual report done by the PBO?

The Chair: I'm clarifying that with Mr. van Koeverden right
now.

Mr. van Koeverden, if you wish to send this article to the com-
mittee, we'll have it translated and distributed.

Is that what you'd like to do?

Mr. Adam van Koeverden: I'm happy to.

I'm responding to a request by Mr. Leslie. I can send Canada's
Ecofiscal Commission's report by 300 economists indicating that
carbon pricing is effective and is not contributing to inflation.

The Chair: You can send what you wish and we'll distribute it.
® (1705)

Mr. Adam van Koeverden: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr.
Chair.

The Chair: We're out of time, unfortunately. I'm going to sus-
pend the meeting. We'll take the time required, a few minutes, to
make the adjustments to go in camera.

I want to thank the witnesses for being here and for answering
our questions. If we don't see you before the summer break, I wish
you all a good summer. I know you'll be busy, but hopefully you'll
get some time for a bit of vacation.

[Proceedings continue in camera)
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